ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COW TTEE
March 21, 2013
9:01 a.m

MEMBERS PRESENT

Senator Fred Dyson, Chair

Senator Cathy G essel, Vice Chair
Senat or John Coghi | |

MEMBERS ABSENT

Senator Bert Stednman
Senator Bill W el echowski

COW TTEE CALENDAR
CONFI RVATI ON HEARI NGS
Al aska State Conm ssion for Human Ri ghts

Christa Bruce-Kotrc
Grace Merkes

- CONFI RVATI ONS ADVANCED

Al aska Board of Parol e
Sar ah Possenti

- CONFI R(VATI ON ADVANCED

Al aska Violent Crines Conpensati on Board
Gerad CGodfrey

- CONFI RVATI ON ADVANCED

Al aska Police Standards Counci l
Mar k Mew

- CONFI RVATI ON ADVANCED
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
No previous action to record

W TNESS REG STER

SENATE STA COW TTEE -1- March 21, 2013



GRACE MERKES, Appoi nt ee

Al aska State Conm ssion for Human Ri ghts

Sterling, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented information about herself as part
of the confirmation hearing.

Christa Bruce-Kotrc, Appointee

Al aska State Conm ssion for Hunman Ri ghts

Ket chi kan, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented information about herself as part
of the confirmation hearing.

Sarah Possenti, Appointee

Al aska Board of Parole

Fai r banks, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented information about herself as part
of the confirmation hearing.

Cerad CGodfrey, Appointee

Al aska Violent Crinmes Conpensation Board

Eagl e Ri ver, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented information about hinself as part
of the confirmation hearing.

MARK MEW Chief of Police and Appointee

Al aska Police Standards Council

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented information about hinmself as part
of the confirmation hearing.

JEFF EDWARDS, Executive Director

Al aska Board of Parole

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of Sarah Possenti's
nom nation to the Board of Parole.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

9:01: 52 AM

CHAIR FRED DYSON called the Senate State Affairs Standing
Committee neeting to order at 9:01 a.m Present at the call to
order were Senators Coghill and G essel and Chair Dyson.

CONFI RVATI ON HEARI NGS

9:02: 37 AM

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 2- March 21, 2013



CHAI R DYSON announced that the only order of business would be a
hearing on the Governor's appointees for the Al aska State
Comm ssion for Human Rights, Board of Parole, Violent Crines
Conpensati on Board, and Al aska Police Standards Council.

Al aska State Conm ssion for Hunman Ri ghts

9:03: 09 AM

CHAI R DYSON announced the business before the commttee was
confirmation hearings. He requested information from Ms. Merkes,
a nom nee for the Alaska State Comm ssion for Human R ghts.

GRACE MERKES, nom nee, Al aska State Comm ssion for Human Rights,
said she hopes for reconfirmation to the State Conm ssion for
Human Rights. She shared her personal history and listed her
qualifications to be on the Conm ssion. She said she has had
many years' experience working with discrimnation cases. She
reported that she was involved wth changes nmde to the
discrimnation |law. She believes all people are created equally
and shoul d not be discrimnated agai nst.

M5. MERKES related that she has been on the Kenai Peninsula
Borough Assenbly for 17 years and she feels qualified to be on
the Commi ssion, which has simlar structure. She explained that
she is famliar with the process the Comm ssion uses, the staff,
nmedi at i ons, and case revi ew heari ngs. She request ed
confirmation.

Ms. Merkes shared statistics about the Comm ssion. In 2012,
there were over 2,000 investigative calls, an increase of 31
cases. She noted the Comm ssion appreciates the funding for two
new human rights investigators, which helped to reduce the case
| oad.

SENATOR COGHI LL thanked Mk, Merkes for serving on the
Conmm ssi on

9:07:23 AM
SENATOR G ESSEL al so thanked Ms. Merkes for her work and for re-
applying to serve again.

M5. MERKES t hanked the comm tt ee.

CHAI R DYSON noted that he served on the Comm ssion for four or
five years. He asked who the executive director is now.

M5. MERKES sai d Paul a Hal ey.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 3- March 21, 2013



CHAI R DYSON recall ed that when he worked at the Conm ssion, nopbst
of the conplaints had to do with discrimnation in enploynent.
He asked if that was still true.

M5. MERKES reported that it was the sane now. She thought about
95 percent of the cases were work-rel ated discrimnation issues.

CHAI R DYSON asked about possi bl e statute changes.

M5. MERKES clarified that effective changes were made severa
years ago. She said the best changes involved including
adm ni strative |law judges in human rights hearings.

9: 09: 44 AM

CHAI R DYSON spoke for the conmmttee in offering to assist with
anything that needs to be done to help the Comm ssion be nore
effective. He asked if there were any objections to forwarding
Ms. Merkes' nanme. There were no objections.

CHAI R DYSON asked if Christa Bruce-Kotrc was present. He said
Ms. Kotrc's personal information is included in nenbers
packets.

9:11: 21 AM
At ease.

9:14:55 AM
CHAIR DYSON asked why Ms. Bruce-Kotrc chose to serve on the
Al aska State Conm ssion on Human Ri ghts.

CHRI STA BRUCE- KOTRC, nom nee, Al aska State Comm ssion on Human
Ri ghts, shared her personal story. She said she has been on the
Comm ssion for a year and cares deeply about serving everyone
equal ly. She stated that the Conm ssion gives hope to people who
feel disenfranchised and she appreci ates being a part of that.

CHAIR DYSON asked if she heard the conversation wth Gace
Mer kes.

MS. BRUCE- KOTRC said she did not.
CHAIR DYSON related that he asked Ms. Merkes if discrimnation
in the work place made up the ngjority of cases the Comm ssion

deals with and she reported that it was true. He asked if M.
Bruce-Kotrc found the sane thing to be true.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -4- March 21, 2013



M5. BRUCE- KOTRC said definitely. She said, "It is wonderful to
have this venue to address those issues."”

CHAIR DYSON asked if there is any pattern or comon
denom nat or s.

M5. BRUCE- KOTRC could not answer that question because she said
she has not been on the Conm ssion |ong enough to see a pattern.
She related that she has seen, first hand, diligent and well-
researched work by the staff. She said she is proud of the work
Conmi ssi on nenbers do.

9:18: 09 AM
CHAIR DYSON requested that the Comm ssion report any statute
change requests.

9:18: 26 AM
Al aska Board of Parol e

CHAI R DYSON asked Sara Possenti to tell the commttee about her
background, qualifications, and experience.

SARAH POSSENTI, nominee, Al aska Board of Parole, shared her
personal history, education, and work history. She recalled her
career with the Fairbanks Youth Court and as an adult probation
officer for about 12 years. She said she has supervised sex
offenders in the field and worked to prevent recidivism with
prisoners. She said she also worked with a substance abuse
program for prisoners.

She spoke of her work on the Al aska Board of Parole for the past
two years, reviewmng files, attending hearings, and visiting
prisons.

SENATOR COGHI LL t hanked Ms. Possenti for her work.

CHAI R DYSON asked if she is retired.

M5. POSSENTI said she was working for the probation system

CHAI R DYSON asked if she is working for the state now.

V5. POSSENTI sai d no.

CHAI R DYSON said he appreciates her service. He said he w shed
to discuss sentencing reformissues further with Ms. Possenti.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 5- March 21, 2013



M5. POSSENTI said she wished to do so. The Board has a |ot of
i deas about various release plans. She explained parole
decisions are based on risk to conmunity. She said the Board
makes discretionary parole plans and has had good success.

CHAIR DYSON suggested they neet in Anchorage for further
conversati on.

9:25:27 AM

Al aska Violent Crines Conpensation Board

CHAI R DYSON introduced M. Codfrey as a re-appointnent to the
Al aska Violent Crimes Conpensation Board. He noted M. Godfrey
is a friend of his. He asked M. Godfrey why he has chosen to
serve on the Board.

GERAD GODFREY, nom nee, Alaska Violent Crinmes Conpensation
Board, shared how he was asked to be on the Board. He said he
was appoi nted by then-Governor Mirkowski in 2003. He shared that
he had experienced violent crine within his owm famly. He
stated that is has been a gratifying and cathartic experience to
serve on the Board. He said his goal is to |leave the Board in a
better position than when he cane on. He noted this would be his
last time on the Board as they help to revise the statutes and
bring them up to date. He voiced appreciation for |legislative
support for the Board.

9:28:11 AM

Al aska Police Standards Counci l

CHAIR DYSON inquired if Chief Mw was being re-appointed. He
congratul ated Chief Mew for his excellent work in the Anchorage
Pol i ce Departnent (APD). He asked Chief Mew to share his reasons
for serving on the Al aska Police Standards Council and his work
experi ence.

CH EF MARK MEW noni nee, Al aska Police Standards Council said he
was being reappointed to the Council. He shared his work history
which began in law enforcenent in the area of corrections in
Oregon. He related that he has been with APD since 1983, retired
in 2003, and worked in the school district as Director of
Security and Energency Preparedness. In 2010, he said he began
as Chief of APD. He added that he has also attended FBI
academ es for police chiefs.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 6- March 21, 2013



He explained that the Council sets hiring and training
standards, as well as decides when certificates should be
revoked, a very inportant function of the Council because it
mai ntai ns standards of performance and behavior. He said he has
a vested interest in having high police standards upheld. He
menti oned a recent case which had a trenmendous negative i npact
on the Anchorage area. He noted a high priority in maintaining
hi gh police standards. He stressed the inportance of the APD and
the Troopers' involvenent in the Council.

CHAI R DYSON noted he has watched Chief Mew deal honorably wth
sonme very tough situations. He asked if the issue of "not
ratting out a buddy" is prevalent in the APD.

CH EF MEW maintained that his officers are forthcomng wth
information and the APD does not have that problem He stated
that a high mark has been set within the APD. He said the
Council wuses decertification as a punishnment when there is
di shonesty.

CHAIR DYSON said it seems difficult to believe that the other
officers did not know what was going on in the aforenentioned
case. He nentioned another situation fifteen years ago rel ated
to bargai ning over decertification.

9:36: 33 AM

CH EF MEW could not recall a time at the APD when soneone shoul d
have been fired and they were allowed to stay on and retain
certification. He said sonetinmes a person is termnated and they
are still able to collect their retirenent; nost of the tine the
Council noves for decertification when an enployee is fired. He
explained the process if an officer quits first. The Council
still does the decertification paperwork.

9:38: 33 AM
CHAI R DYSON assuned that future potential enployers have access
to the decertification record.

CH EF MEW said yes. The next departnent will do a background
check and discover that information. Also, the Council wll get
word of the person's application for a new position and prevent
a certificate from being issued.

CHAI R DYSON t hanked Chief Mew for his work.

9:40: 15 AM

SENATE STA COW TTEE -7- March 21, 2013



JEFF EDWARDS, Executive Director, Al aska Board of Parole, noted
he was just there for questions and to support M. Possenti's
reappoi ntment on the Al aska Board of Parole.

CHAIR DYSON requested further discussion about felony records
when possible. He asked M. Edwards if he is in Anchorage.

MR. EDWARDS agreed to neet sone tine. He said his office in
downt owmn Anchorage has parole, executive clenency, and pardon
functi ons.

CHAIR DYSON noved to forward the followi ng appointnents to a
joint legislative session for consideration:

Al aska State Conmi ssion for Human Ri ghts
Christa Bruce-Kotrc
G ace Merkes

Al aska Board of Parole
Sar ah Possenti

Al aska Violent Crinmes Conpensation Board
CGerad CGodfrey

Al aska Police Standards Counci l
Mar k Mew

There being no objection, it was so ordered.

CHAI R DYSON clarified that the notion does not reflect an intent
by any of the nenbers to vote for or against the confirnmation of
t he individuals during any further sessions.

9:42: 17 AM
There being no further business to conme before the commttee

Chair Dyson adjourned the Senate State Affairs Standing
Commttee at 8:42 a.m

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 8- March 21, 2013



